
 
 

 

REVISED		
GOLDSBORO	CITY	COUNCIL		
REGULAR	MEETING	AGENDA		
MONDAY,	OCTOBER	7,	2019		
 

(Please	turn	off,	or	silence,	all	cellphones	upon	entering	the	Council	Chambers)	
	
I. WORK	SESSION	–	4:00	P.M.	–	CITY	HALL	ADDITION,	200	N.	CENTER	ST.,	ROOM	206 

 
II. ADOPTION	OF	THE	AGENDA 

 
CLOSED	SESSION	
Economic Development, Potential Litigation and Personnel Matters 

 
OLD	BUSINESS	
A.    Jaylen Suggs (Juju) Remembrance Discussion (Councilmember Foster)  

 
NEW	BUSINESS	
B. NC Freedom Festival (Parks and Recreation) *Attachment	Included   

 
III. CALL	TO	ORDER	–	7:00	P.M.	–	COUNCIL	CHAMBERS,	214	N.	CENTER	ST. 

Invocation (Pastor Dan Baer, St. Luke United Methodist Church) 
Pledge of Allegiance  

 
IV. ROLL	CALL 

 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (*Motion/Second) 

A.   Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of August 5, 2019  
 

VI. PRESENTATIONS 
 

VII. PUBLIC	COMMENT	PERIOD	(TIME	LIMIT	OF	3	MINUTES	PER	SPEAKER) 
 
VIII. CONSENT	AGENDA	ITEMS (*Motion/Second‐‐Roll	Call) 

B. Special Revenue Fund Budget Amendment – Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue fund    
(Finance)   

C. Resolution – Rural Housing Recovery Infrastructure Grant – DISBURSEMENT (Finance)   
D. Authorization to dispose of real property to Wayne County under N.C. General Statute §160A-274 (Sale,   

lease, exchange and joint use of governmental property) (Finance) 
E. Contract Award – 2019 Wastewater Collection System Rehabilitation & Storm Sewer Improvements Project 

– Formal Bid No. 2019-007 (Engineering)  
F. Informal Bid No. 2018-006: Essential Single-Family Rehabilitation Loan Pool – Disaster Recovery (ESFRLP-

DR) Program (Community Relations)  
G. Resolution Authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to Execute a Memorandum of Understanding with the 

County of Wayne (City Attorney)  
H. CU-8-19 Anderson Brewing – (Microbrewery w/ABC) The property is located on the northeast corner of W. 

Pine Street and S. George Street (Planning) 



 

 

I. CU-9-19 Goldsboro Brew Works, LLC – The property is located on the southwest corner of W. Chestnut 
Street and S. James Street (Planning) 

J. CU-10-19 Regina Exum - North side of Royall Avenue between Jefferson Street and Teakwood Drive (Adult 
Day Care) (Planning) 

K. CU-11-19 Louis Antonio Jimenez-East side of S. NC 111 Hwy between Mollie Drive and Sheridan Forest 
Road (Planning) 

L. Z-16-19 KG Plaza, LLC – East side of Eleventh Street between Norwood Avenue and Englewood Drive 
(Planning) 

M. Z-17-19 KG Plaza, LLC – East side of Eleventh Street between Norwood Avenue and Englewood Drive 
(Planning) 

N. Z-18-19 KG Plaza, LLC – West side of Eleventh Street between Norwood Avenue and Englewood Drive 
(Planning) 

 
IX. ITEMS	REQUIRING	INDIVIDUAL	ACTION (*Motion/Second) 

 
X. CITY	MANAGER’S	REPORT 

 
XI. MAYOR	AND	COUNCILMEMBERS’	REPORTS	AND	RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
XII. CLOSED	SESSION	(if	necessary,	additional	time) 
 
XIII. ADJOURN 



NC FREEDOM FEST

WS Item B





Purpose

• To receive Council approval for the City to host and coordinate “NC Freedom Fest 
2020” on Armed Forces Day to honor and celebrate the sacrifices of our Armed 
Forces. 

10/2/2019 3



Proposed Events

• Scheduled coordinated daily activities week leading up to Saturday’s festival

• Example: 

Paramount Movie Night

Trivia Night

Golf Tournament

Center Street Jam

• Festival on Saturday, May 16th planning to include Car Show, Kids Zone, Military 
Appreciation Awards, Wings of Wayne Cook-off, just to name a few

10/2/2019 4



Costs

• Expenses associated with the week of events will be covered by sponsorship 
monies raised. The event will be scalable, meaning, we can adjust the elements 
based upon the success of the sponsorship campaign.

• Several sponsorship levels will be available

• The City is not being asked to fund these events; however, City employees will be 
working at these events

10/2/2019 5



Benefits

• Honor our NC Military Communities
• Seymour Johnson Air Force Base, Marine Corps Air Station Cherry Point, Marine Corps Base Camp Lejeune, Fort Bragg Army 

Base, and Marine Corps Air Station New River

• Provide food and entertainment to enhance the quality of life for our residents and 
visitors. 

• Support our military friendly non-profit organizations and businesses.

10/2/2019 6



NC FREEDOM FEST

10/2/2019 7

GOLF TOURNAMENT

CENTER STREET JAM

TRIVIA NIGHT

PARAMOUNT MOVIE NIGHT



NC FREEDOM FEST

10/2/2019 8

WINGS OF WAYNE

HELICOPTER RIDES FIREWORKS

MILITARY APPRECIATION



NC FREEDOM FEST

10/2/2019 9

ART DISPLAY

ENTERTAINMENT

CAR SHOW

KIDS ZONE



NC FREEDOM FEST

10/2/2019 10

MEMORIALS

MILITARY VEHICLES

HISTORY DISPLAY

VIP TENT



Questions??

10/2/2019 11



1 

MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL HELD 
AUGUST 5, 2019 

WORK SESSION 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a 
Work Session in the Large Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center 
Street, at 5:00 p.m. on August 5, 2019 with attendance as follows: 

Present: Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
Mayor Pro Tem Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Antonio Williams  
Councilmember Bevan Foster 
Councilmember David Ham 
Councilmember Gene Aycock 
Ron Lawrence, Attorney 
Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Randy Guthrie, Assistant City Manager  
Melissa Capps, City Clerk 
LaToya Henry, Public Information Officer  
Octavius Murphy, Assistant to the City Manager  
Jennifer Collins, Planning Director 
Scott Williams, IT Director 
Felicia Brown, Interim P&R Director  
Mike Wagner, Deputy Public Works Director – Utilities 
Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director  
Joe Dixon, Fire Chief  
Julie Metz, DGDC Director 
Bernadette Dove, HR Director 
Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director 
Marty Anderson, City Engineer 
Davin Madden, Public Health Director 
Ken Conners, News Director-Curtis Media Group East 
Eddie Fitzgerald, News Argus Reporter 
Lonnie Casey, Citizen 
Bobby Mathis, Citizen 
Della Mathis, Citizen 
Yvonnia Moore, Citizen 
Carl Martin, Citizen 
Sylvia Barnes, Citizen  
Mark Pope, Wayne County Development Alliance 
Myelle Thompson, Citizen 
David Craig, Citizen (arrived at 6:38 p.m.) 

Absent: Councilmember Mark Stevens 

Call to Order.  The meeting was called to order by Mayor Allen at 5:00 p.m. 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Mayor Allen stated he would request Council add 
resignation letter from Councilmember Mark Stevens to the agenda.  Mayor Allen stated 
Mr. Mark Pope would be hear around 6:00 p.m. to discuss an economic development 
matter and Council will need to go into Closed Session.  Councilmember Foster stated he 
would like to add Wayne Water District to the agenda.  Councilmember Williams stated 
he would like to add criteria for personal emails received from constituents. 

Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Broadaway and unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda with the requested 
additions. 

Health Department Allocation Request to Combat Opioid Abuse.  Davin 
Madden, Public Health Director shared information regarding a request to help combat 
opioid abuse.  The Wayne County Health Department is seeking a commitment from the 

Item A



2 
 
 

City of Goldsboro to provide an annual allocation of $12,000 for a three-year period to 
help fund the county’s Overdose Prevention Coordinator.   
 
Chief West shared concerns if the Overdose Prevention Coordinator is not funded.   
 
Councilmember Aycock asked what percentage is this of the total operating cost.  Mr. 
Madden stated approximately 25%.  Councilmember Aycock stated we are paying city 
taxes and county taxes, I know it is needed, but I would like to see the county put more 
money into it.  I don’t mind the $12,000 especially for this but in the future I’d like for 
you to consider we are also in the county and we are getting hit twice.   
 
Mr. Madden stated you make a great point, the County does put in contributions, I have 
set aside some flex dollars just in case and those come from the County. 
 
Councilmember Foster stated I have been in mental health field for years now and I know 
that what you are trying to do is a great thing and is needed.  My concern is we have 
Eastpointe that receives millions of dollars, we have agencies that make millions of 
dollars throughout Wayne County.  I feel like that role should be coming from Eastpointe 
and those agencies.  Councilmember Foster asked what the county was doing to work 
with the agencies and also Eastpointe and what is the Police Department doing to work 
with the agencies.  There is a gap.  Councilmember Foster stated I don’t really have a 
problem with the money per say but I do think there is another way it can be done and 
moving as one group.  
 
Mr. Madden stated I agree there are lots of funding streams, but there are restrictions on 
those funds that you have to juggle, so having a coordinator, helps to bring things 
together, to stay consistent and unified.   
 
Discussion continued.  Council agreed to defer action for two weeks and consider 
funding at that time.   
 
 2019-20 Resurfacing List.  Mr. Marty Anderson provided a proposed street 
resurfacing list and noted a substitution for Best Street with Walnut Street.  Council 
consensus was staff could proceed with getting it out to bid.   
 
Councilmember Foster asked about a dirt street in his district.   
 
Mr. Anderson provided Council an update on the paving of previously approved dirt 
streets, Oak Hill Drive and E. Chestnut Street.   
 
Council and staff discussed dirt streets.   
  

2019 Public Art Recommendations.  Ms. Julie Metz presented the following 
information: 
 
Background 
1) Center Street Design & Roundabouts  
2) Options  

- Purchase Art  
- Lease Art  
- Selection Process  

3) April Applications for 2019-20 PASC Members: 15 Responses 
4) Public Art Steering Committee 

Regular Members Include: 
-Allison Platt, Project Designer 
-Randy Guthrie, Assistant City Manager 
-Jennifer Collins, City Planner/Historic District Rep. 
-Georgia Dees, Arts Council Director 
-Julie Metz, Downtown Director 

 
2019-20 Members Included: 

-Alexandra Price 



3 
 
 

-Allison Taylor 
-Amanda Grantham 
-Anthony Russo 
-Bobby Shoemake 
-Cheryl Dobson 
-Christy Langly 
-Jennifer Kuykendall 
-Jo Ann Logan 
-Josie Jenkins 
-LaTanya Johnson 
-Lee Hulse 
-Marian Broadie 
-Sarah McCollouch 
-Timothy Imafidon 

5) 61 Pieces Reviewed July 11 
6) Shortlisted to 9 
7) Public 7/13 to 7/31 
 
Selections: Center Street Roundabouts 
NAVIGATOR 
Dimensions: 24’ x 10’ x 10’ 
Materials: Aluminum 
Note: One piece, opposing views pictured. 
 
CENTERPOINT 
Dimensions: 11’ x 6’ x 5’ 
Materials: Painted Steel 
Note: One piece shown from different perspectives 
 
TRINITY 
Dimensions: 17.5’ x 6’ x 7’ 
Materials: Steel and Stainless 
Note: One piece; different perspective 
 
Selections: John Street Parking Lot Entrance 
RED JUGGLER 
Dimensions: 12’ x 5’ x 5’ 
Materials: Powder Coated Aluminum 
Note: One piece; different perspective 
 
VALKYRIE 
Dimensions: 9.7’ x 9.7’ x 8’ 
Materials: Galvanized Steel 
Note: One piece; different perspective 
 
ROUND UP 
Dimensions: 12’ X 5’ X 4’ 
Materials: Stainless Steel 
Note: One piece; different perspective 
 
Selections: Center Median 
SWEET HEARTS 
Dimensions: 8’ x 3” 
Materials: Steel, Backerboard, Plywood, Stucco, Paint 
Note: Same piece; different perspective. 
 
MOO 
Dimensions: 5’ x 6’ x 2’ 
Materials: Repurposed Steel 
 
BLOSSOM 
Dimensions: 7’ x 4.5’ x 4’ 



4 
 
 

Materials: Steel, Paint 
Note: Same piece; different perspective. 
 
8) Public Comments: 351 Responses 
9) Public/PASC Recommendation 
 

NAVIGATOR 
Dimensions: 24’ x 10’ x 10’ 
Materials: Aluminum 

 
TRINITY 
Dimensions: 17.5’ x 6’ x 7’ 
Materials: Steel 

 
BLOSSOM 
Dimensions: 7’ x 4.5’ x 4’ 
Materials: Steel, Paint 

 
VALKYRIE 
Dimensions: 9.7’ X 9.7’ X 8’ 
Materials: Galvanized Steel 

 
Art Rotation Day 
Art Installation Ceremony is scheduled for Friday, October 11, 2019 – Noon in front of 
City Hall. 
 
Councilmember Foster asked what the cost was.  Ms. Metz replied $3,000 per piece was 
budgeted for the Center Street roundabouts; $1,500 for the piece for John Street parking 
lot and $1,000 for the piece in the Center Street median. 
 
Council consensus was staff could proceed. 
 
 Councilmember Stevens Resignation Letter.   Mayor Allen shared 
Councilmember Stevens had said he was going to resign, I believe, at the last meeting.  
Our ordinance says that in order to resign you have to do it in writing.  He has today 
delivered a letter that all of you have a copy of, asking to resign officially today.  So we 
would need to accept his resignation so that we could declare the seat vacant. 
 
Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by Councilmember Ham and 
unanimously carried, Council accepted Councilmember Stevens’ resignation. 
 
Mayor Allen stated we now have a vacant seat and what I would recommend, unless 
anyone sees it differently, Attorney Lawrence can bring back a process in which we can 
appoint a new person.   
 
Council discussed ordinances and laws regarding appointments.  Attorney Lawrence 
stated he would email everyone a copy of the ordinance and general statutes on filling the 
vacancy. 
 
 Wayne Water District.  Councilmember Foster stated I received a call and an 
email, we are supposed to be negotiating with Wayne Water District over some issues 
with Case Farms and they asked me if I knew anything about it and I said no.  They asked 
why the Council did not know about it and I just want to get some clarity on it from the 
City Manager, Ron Lawrence and they said the Mayor had some dealings with Case 
Farms as well, so I just want to get some clarity on that.  
 
Mr. Salmon stated the Wayne Water District is selling some water to Case Farms and we 
have a legal agreement that they should not be doing that with one of our customers, so 
Mr. Lawrence wrote them a letter telling them of such.  We discussed splitting the profit 
margin at which they can sell water at our lowest rate which is about $2.20-ish and then 
resell it for $4.30-ish and we are asking to split that profit margin, they have yet to agree 
to that.    



5 
 
 

 
Councilmember Foster stated so you are saying that the agreement we have with Wayne 
Water District, the water we sell to Wayne Water District, that we have an agreement that 
they should not be selling water to Case Farms.  Mr. Salmon stated that is correct, as far 
as I understand it.  Councilmember Foster asked how long have they been doing that. 
 
Mr. Mike Wagner stated our agreement with Wayne Water District was in 2009, they 
have been selling water to them since 90’s.  Mr. Wagner stated right now they are selling 
water from their wells, they are not using the City of Goldsboro’s of water as of yet but 
will be in the future and that is why we are trying to work out an agreement.   
 
Councilmember Foster asked when did this all come about.  Mr. Wagner stated this has 
been probably going on since May.  Councilmember Foster asked when they decided to 
expand, when Case Farms decided to expand, is that when you found out about the water.  
Mr. Wagner replied I found out about the water when Case Farms came to me and asked 
why they were not allowed to tap into Wayne Water District’s line.  Mr. Wagner stated 
we tried to negotiate with Case Farms several times and they never told us they were 
going to increase their water use.  Councilmember Foster stated so you did not know they 
were adding taps.  Mr. Wagner stated correct, we did not know they needed the new 
demand for water.   
 
Councilmember Foster stated then I’m going to point to the Mayor, from my 
understanding with them, there was a contract out for them for their taps on their water, 
and they were going to expand.  Councilmember Foster stated your business had that 
contract, from my understanding, and you turned the contract down, and that is when all 
of this started with the whole entire water thing, with us trying to basically gather over 
money, behind the water, this is my understanding, from Wayne Water District. So I am 
trying to find out what’s what, because you are saying that you did not know about it, you 
did not know about their expansion but I do know that the Mayor was supposed to install 
the taps but right after that, we come with the water issue and the money issue.  It is like 
it’s all working together, so I am trying to figure out what’s going on because there are 
some very angry people and they are upset.  It seems backdoor because it was not 
brought to Council to make a decision on it.  I don’t know legally if that was a decision 
you should have made Mr. Salmon because you are just getting here, or where the 
decision was made from, but I am offended as well, because as a councilman I get a 
phone call about it and I do not know anything about it.   
 
Mr. Wagner stated nothing is finalized yet, we are trying to handle it internally as city 
staff and we will bring it back for Council recommendation.   
 
Councilmember Foster stated it should have been brought to us from the start then to 
negotiation.   
 
Mayor Allen stated Councilmember Foster they negotiate and work on things every day, 
all departments, you cannot be involved in everything.  Councilmember Foster stated and 
that is fine, but what I am saying is you knew about it.  Councilmember Foster stated you 
knowing about it after your company backed out of installing the taps, all of a sudden the 
city comes with basically a lawsuit for money, almost, kind of sort of, not really a 
lawsuit, but gets into a legal situation over the water.   
 
Mayor Allen stated you are not right in what you are saying, so let me help you a little 
bit.  The city and Case Farms have been going back and forth over water for years, before 
I was even Mayor.  They have been working with Case Farms for months, I have a 
contract to work with Primus.  Primus had a contract to make taps out there.  They put it 
out for bid, there is another company that does almost all the work for Wayne Water 
District, we said let them do it, it had nothing to do with Case Farms, nothing to do with 
these taps.  They have to make the taps because we can’t provide water, we hope over 
time we can provide Case Farms their water, to do that we have to increase our pump 
size, our capacity and booster pump.  None of this has anything to do with that you are 
talking about.   
 



6 
 
 

Mayor Allen and Councilmember Foster continued discussions.  Councilmember Foster 
stated at the end of the day, when did you start negotiations with them Mr. Salmon.  Mr. 
Salmon stated I would say I found out about the issue in the June-ish time frame, so we 
have been working through the option, the whole intent is to make sure the city gets its 
fair share of the water bill.  Councilmember Foster stated at the end of the day it came 
after he backed out.  Mayor Allen stated my business had nothing to do with this.  
Councilmember Foster stated he would get the information. 
 
 Personal Email.  Councilmember Williams stated I received an email from a 
citizen, it was a confidential email that was sent directly to me without going into details 
of this email, this email was sent to the city manager, from one of our clerks, and it was 
serious issues that could have caused harm to this individual and in turn this email was 
sent to you Mayor Allen, it was sent to a third party.  So my concerns are, why is 
someone looking at my personal email, where the citizens are supposed to confide in 
whoever they are sending it to and trust them.  What’s the protocol for pertaining to that, 
I can understand the city manager looking at employee emails, our clerk had no right, I 
do not know which clerk did it, but the clerk had no right to forward this information that 
was confidential.  We need to have a protocol in place.  Mr. Salmon you do not know 
what the protocol is when it comes to the Fourth Amendment, when it comes to email 
and we need to straighten that out.  I would appreciate in the future if it is sent to me, it is 
not sent to another councilmember and if there is a serious issue, we can talk about that.  
Give me an opportunity to read my emails first, and to make a decision.  Now I do not 
know what is going on with this individual because it was shared.  Maybe you could 
provide me an update without sharing the details of the situation.   
 
Mr. Salmon said I would like to do that offline, but procedurally, anything sent into our 
government website, it is public information can be FOIA-able information.  
Councilmember Williams stated its only public information when it is dealing with public 
business.  
 
Mr. Salmon stated our procedures are when something comes in either to a 
councilmember or to a citizen request, it goes to our clerks.  Our clerks see every one of 
them and send them to the appropriate person.  This particular case, the clerks brought it 
to my attention because it had to do with someone’s life in jeopardy, abuse of family 
members, which I have a moral if not legal authority for mandatory reporting once I find 
something like that out. So I sent it to you as the councilmember it was too, the chief of 
police as I thought he needed to look into it and to the mayor because he is elected at-
large and is responsible for all citizens.  So that was my thought process.  You can 
change the process if you want.   
 
Councilmember Williams stated the mayor has nothing to do with a constituent getting in 
touch with me personally.  If this individual wanted to get in touch with the mayor she 
could have done that or he could have done that.  If he or she wanted to get in touch with 
the police department, they could have done that.   
 
Discussion continued regarding the Fourth Amendment.  
 
Mr. Salmon stated if you want to change the procedure, Council can do so.  Mayor Allen 
asked the attorney to look at when something is sent to your city email when does it 
become public information.   
 
 Closed Session Held.  Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway, seconded by 
Councilmember Aycock and unanimously carried, Council convened into Closed Session 
to discuss an economic matter. 
 
Council came out of closed session. 
 

Consent Agenda Review.  Items on the Consent Agenda were reviewed.  
Additional discussion included the following: 

 



7 
 
 

Item C. Operating Lease for Golf Turf Equipment with PNC Equipment 
Finance, LLC.  Ms. Catherine Gwynn and Ms. Felicia Brown shared the following 
information: 
 
Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course Maintenance Equipment Lease 

• City of Goldsboro has a lease for maintenance equipment used at Goldsboro 
Municipal Golf Course 

• This 59 month lease has concluded  
• Equipment lease cost was for $3,901.77/month plus tax; that equates to 

$46,821.24/year 
• Equipment lease was for seven (7) pieces of equipment; one of which the City of 

Goldsboro is interested in purchasing 
(Approved in FY19-20 P&R Budget to purchase this piece of equipment to assist 
with cutting Ballfields, Bryan MSCX, etc.) 

 
What are our options: 

• Purchase new equipment (6 pieces) = $283,222.92 plus tax 
• Purchase old equipment (7 pieces) = $105,000.00 plus tax 
• 2 Yr Lease on old equipment (7 pieces),  

with City of Goldsboro owning equipment at end of lease   
= $4,673.86/month plus tax 

• Lease new equipment (6 pieces)  =     $4,755.59/month plus tax  OR  
      $54,705.45 annually plus tax 

• Staff recommendation: Lease new equipment with annual payment option 
 
Councilmember Foster expressed concerns regarding the losses at the golf course.  
Councilmember Foster stated now you are trying to commit to a 5 year lease.  What we 
are losing every year really isn’t going down and we are losing around $200,000 a year. 
 
Council discussed the options, maintenance costs and equipment hours.  Upon motion of 
Mayor Allen, seconded by Councilmember Broadaway and unanimously carried, Council 
removed Item C.  Operating Lease for Golf Turf Equipment with PNC Equipment 
Finance, LLC from the agenda and deferred for two weeks.  
 
 The remaining consent agenda items will be reviewed at the regular council 
meeting.   
 

There being no further business, the meeting recessed until the 7:00 p.m. meeting. 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 The Mayor and Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in regular 
session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on August 
5, 2019 with attendance as follows: 
 
 
 Present:  Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
   Mayor Pro Tem Bill Broadaway  

Councilmember Antonio Williams 
Councilmember Bevan Foster 
Councilmember David Ham 
Councilmember Gene Aycock  

  
 The meeting was called to order by Mayor Allen at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Councilmember Broadaway provided the invocation.  The Pledge to the Flag 

followed.  
 
Approval of Minutes.  Councilmember Aycock made a motion to approve the 

Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of May 20, 2019 as submitted.  The 
motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway.  Mayor Allen, Mayor Pro Tem 
Broadaway, Councilmembers Ham and Aycock voted in favor of the motion.  



8 
 
 

Councilmembers Williams and Foster voted against the motion.  Mayor Allen stated the 
motions passed 4:2. 
 

National Honey Bee Day Proclamation.  Mayor Allen proclaimed August 17, 
2019 as “National Honey Bee Day” in Goldsboro, North Carolina and encouraged the 
citizens of Goldsboro to celebrate the honey bee and its many contributions with 
appropriate observances and activities. 
 
Mayor Allen presented a copy of the National Honey Bee Day Proclamation to Ms. Jane 
Stewart. 
 
Ms. Stewart invited everyone to come out to National Honey Bee Day on August 17th at 
Waynesborough Park from 9:00 am to 3:00 pm. 

 
Public Comment Period.  Mayor Allen opened the public comment period.  The 

following person spoke: 
 
 D.R. Halliday shared concerns regarding litter and cleanliness of the city.   
 
No one else spoke and the Public Comment Period was closed.   
 
 Consent Agenda Review.  As time did not allow during the Work Session, 
consent agenda items were reviewed.  Additional discussion included: 
 

Item E.  Contract Award – 2018 Street Paving Improvements Project Formal 
Bid No. 2019-003.  Mr. Marty Anderson stated after reviewing the replacement of 
utilities staff has decided to re-engineer the project to reduce costs and re-advertise the 
project at a later date with a different scope of work.  So instead of awarding this bid, 
staff is recommending Council reject all bids.  
 
Upon motion of Councilmember Williams, seconded by Councilmember Aycock and 
unanimously carried, Council removed Item E. Contract Award – 2018 Street Paving 
Improvements Project Formal Bid No. 2019-003 from the Consent Agenda and placed 
under Items Requiring Individual Action. 
 

Item F. City of Goldsboro Personnel Policy Revision – Anti-Harassment 
Policy.  Councilmember Foster stated he would like to table this to allow time to review 
to make sure we are making appropriate changes.  Councilmember Foster shared he had 
received calls regarding racial slurs and issues and I just want to make sure we are 
addressing that.  
 
Upon motion of Councilmember Foster, seconded by Councilmember Williams and 
unanimously carried, Council tabled Item F. City of Goldsboro Personnel Policy 
Revision – Anti-Harassment Policy to allow additional time to review until the next 
meeting.   
 
Councilmember Ham stated Ms. Dove I did read this and I do think it is a well written 
document.  Ms. Dove stated it is a template taken off of the EEOC website, it is what 
they recommend for employers to have.  
 
 Item G. Resolution – 2019 Urgent Repair Program.  Councilmember Williams 
asked when the start date and end date was for applications.  Mr. Guthrie replied we 
tentatively had planned for October to be that date, we will advertise it in accordance 
with the policy we are adopting here.  It will be put in the newspaper, government 
buildings, and various locations.  Councilmember Williams asked if an individual has 
received it in the past but they still qualify as a low-wealth individual in that criteria are 
they still eligible if they have needs in place.  Mr. Guthrie stated I don’t believe so if they 
received this exact program in the past, but I will verify that.  Councilmember Williams 
asked if someone needs help filling out the paperwork, will there be someone who can 
help them.  Mr. Guthrie replied, yes sir, we do not want that to be a barrier to them 
applying for the money. 
  



9 
 
 

Item L. Goldsboro/Wayne Transportation Authority Board Re-
Appointment.  Councilmember Williams reminded Council with Councilmember 
Stevens’ resignation that leaves a vacant seat on the GWTA Board.  Mayor Allen asked 
that be discussed at the next meeting.   
 
 Contract Award – 2018 Street Paving Improvements Project Formal Bid No. 
2019-003.  Bids Rejected.  On Wednesday, June 5, 2019, five (5) sealed bids were 
received for the 2018 Street Paving Improvements Project. 
 
The proposed work consists of approximately 2,200 square yards of pavement with 600 
linear feet of storm water lines, 400 linear feet of water line, 400 linear feet of sanitary 
sewer line, and 1,000 linear feet of concrete curb and gutter. This project includes Oak 
Hill Drive from North Berkeley Boulevard to Green Drive and East Chestnut Street from 
South Slocumb Street to South Leslie Street. 
 
BridgePoint Civil, LLC submitted the low bid for this project for a total cost of $609,596. 
The bids received for this project are tabulated as follows: 
 
Name of Bidder      Amount of Bid 
BridgePoint Civil, LLC     $   609,596.00 
Goldsboro, NC 
 
Tripp Bro’s, Inc.      $   683,167.50 
Ayden, NC 
   
Barnhill Contracting Company    $   742,633.80 
Kinston, NC 
 
Herring-Rivenbark, Inc.     $   843,231.00 
Kinston, NC 
 
Fred Smith Company      $1,038,905.00 
Raleigh, NC 
 
The bids for this project have been reviewed by the Engineering Department, checked for 
accuracy, and found to be in order.  We have reviewed the financing of this project with 
the Finance Director and determined that funds are available in Street Bonds. 
 
After reviewing the replacement of utilities staff has decided to re-engineer the project to 
reduce costs and re-advertise the project at a later date with a different scope of work.  So 
instead of awarding this bid, staff is recommending Council reject all bids. 
 
Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway, seconded by Councilmember Aycock and 
unanimously carried, Council denied the bid for $609,596 for street paving 
improvements.  
 
 Consent Agenda - Approved as Recommended.  Mayor Allen, presented the 
Consent Agenda.  All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted 
simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a Councilmember so requested, 
any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately.  In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted 
on with one motion and roll call vote.  Mayor Allen reminded Council Item C. Operating 
Lease for Golf Turf Equipment with PNC Equipment Finance, LLC. , Item E.  Contract 
Award – 2018 Street Paving Improvements Project Formal Bid No. 2019-003 and Item F. 
City of Goldsboro Personnel Policy Revision – Anti-Harassment Policy were removed 
from the Consent Agenda.   Councilmember Aycock moved the items on the Consent 
Agenda, Items D, G, H, I, J, K, and L be approved as recommended by the City Manager 
and staff.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Ham and a roll call vote resulted 
Mayor Allen, Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway, Councilmembers Ham and Aycock voting in 
the affirmative.  Councilmembers Williams and Foster voted against the motion.  Mayor 
Allen declared the Consent Agenda approved as recommended with 4:2 vote. The items 
on the Consent Agenda were as follows: 



10 
 
 

Bid Award for Paving Greenway in Stoney Creek Park.  Resolution Adopted. 
The City of Goldsboro was awarded a GoWayneGo Grant for $40,000.  The City of 
Goldsboro matched the grant with $40,000.  The combined $80,000 is to be used for 
paving the Greenway in Stoney Creek Park and Dillard Middle/Mina Weil Park Track.   
 
The City of Goldsboro requested informal bids for Paving Greenway in Stoney Creek 
Park project.   
 
The scope of the project included: 
 

• Option 1 – paving a 10’ wide greenway trail with an asphalt surface or 
• Option 2 – paving an 8’ wide greenway trail with an asphalt surface 

 
On July 25, 2019, the informal bids were opened with Barnhill Contracting Company 
being the low bidder.  Parks and Recreation staff reviewed each bid proposal and 
recommend Barnhill Contracting Company for Option 1.  Funding is available to cover 
the total bid amount of $40,283.  Bid tabulation is as follows: 
 
      Option 1 Option 2 
BARNHILL CONTRACTING COMPANY    $40,283.00   $39,845.00 
PO BOX 399 
KINSTON, NC 28502 
drrussell@barnhillcontracting.com 
LICENSE# 3194 

 
E. HADDOCK ENTERPRISE, LLC.      $50,200.00   $44,500.00 
PO BOX 719, 1868 OLD CORNWALLIS ROAD 
PRINCETON, NC 27569 
haddockenterprises@gmail.com 
LICENSE # 75036 

 
FSC II, dba FRED SMITH COMPANY     $65,728.00   $59,814.00 
701 CORPORATE CENTER DRIVE, SUITE 101 
RALEIGH, NC 27607 
ty.johnson@fredsmithcompany.net 
LICENSE# 43848 

 
T.A. LOVING COMPANY        $74,000.00   $68,000.00 
PO DRAWER 919 
GOLDSBORO, NC 27533 
tedmondson@taloving.com 
LICENSE# 325 

 
NPS SOLUTIONS, LLC        $75,000.00   $67,500.00 
PO BOX 58344 
RALEIGH, NC 27658 
aadupoku@npsmarking.com 
LICENSE# 81746 

 
HINE SITEWORK, INC.        $123,200.00   $113,700.00 
PO BOX 1275 
GOLDSBORO, NC 27533 
neil@hinesitework.com 
LICENSE# 52225 

 
Staff recommended Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the 
Mayor and City Clerk to execute a contract in the amount of $40,283 with Barnhill 
Contracting Company to construct greenway trail in Stoney Creek Park.  Consent Agenda 
Approval.  Aycock/Ham (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-61 “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO TO EXECUTE CONTRACT WITH BARNHILL CONTRACTING 
COMPANY FOR GREENWAY TRAIL CONSTRUCTION IN STONEY CREEK 
PARK” 
 

Resolution - 2019 Urgent Repair Program (URP19).  Resolution Adopted.  
The City of Goldsboro applied for a grant in January 2019 for funding by North Carolina 
Housing Finance Agency (NCHFA) through the North Carolina Housing Trust Fund for 



11 
 
 

the 2019 Urgent Repair Program (URP19) in the amount of $100,000.  This grant is to be 
in conjunction with the City’s Community Development Block Grant Program. 
 
NCHFA has awarded the City funding for the 2019 Urgent Repair Program (URP19) in 
the amount of $100,000 to assist twelve (12) eligible very-low and low-income 
homeowners with urgent repairs up to $10,000 per home to prevent displacement, which 
poses an imminent threat to their life and/or safety.  The time period of this grant will 
begin on July 12, 2019 and end on December 31, 2020. 
 
No matching funds are required of the City of Goldsboro in conjunction with this 
Program. 
 
Staff recommended Council adopt the following entitled Resolution: 
 

1. Approving the URP19 Assistance, Procurement, and Disbursement 
Policies to conduct this Urgent Repair Program in conjunction with the 
City’s Community Development Block Grant Program. 

 
2. Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the URP19 Assistance, 

Procurement, and Disbursement Policies. 
 

3. Authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to accept and sign a contract with 
NCHFA in the amount of $100,000.  Consent Agenda Approval.  
Aycock/Ham (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-62  “RESOLUTION APPROVING URP19 ASSISTANCE, 
PROCUREMENT AND DISBURSEMENT POLICIES” 
 

Z-14-19 Mary Sue Fallin – East side of Fallin Boulevard between N. Berkeley 
Boulevard and Central Heights Road. Ordinance Adopted.  Applicant is requesting a 
zoning change of the property from R-6CD (Residential) to GB (General Business). 

 
The property is zoned residential and is currently vacant and undeveloped.  
 
On Monday, June 2, 2003, Goldsboro City Council approved a rezoning change for 
subject property from NB (Neighborhood Business) to R-6 Residential Conditional 
District.  The subject property along with surrounding tracts was part of a combination 
rezoning for the construction of 312 apartment units.  Once approved, the developer 
chose to build 264 apartments in lieu of 312 and forfeited his option to purchase subject 
property. 
 
Frontage:   158 ft. (Fallin Blvd.) 
       
Area:    117,918 sq. ft., or 2.70 acres 
 
Zoning:  Residential (R-6CD) 
   
As previously stated, the applicant is requesting a zoning change from R-6 CD 
(Residential) to General Business (GB).  
 
Surrounding Zoning:   
    
North:   R-6 CD (Residential), SC (Shopping Center); 
   
South:   NB (Neighborhood Business); 
  
East:    RM-8 (Residential Manufactured Non-Conforming); and 
 
West:    GB (General Business), SC (Shopping Center) 
 
The City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan recommends high-density residential 
development for the property.   



12 
 
 

City sewer is available to serve the property.  Subject area is located in a Special Flood 
Hazard Area (100-year floodplain). 
 
The subject property has frontage along Fallin Boulevard, which will be extended from 
Berkeley Boulevard to Central Heights Road by the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation.  These improvements are part of an overall project to realign Central 
Heights Road and Royall Ave at Berkeley Boulevard.  These improvements are 
scheduled to begin construction in July 2020 with a construction duration of 24 months.    
 
Currently, there are no plans for development of the property.  The applicant believes the 
marketability of the property would be enhanced if rezoned to General Business. 
At the public hearing held on July 15, 2019, no one spoke for or against the request. 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on July 29, 2019, recommended 
approval of the change of zone request with development plan approval required 
separately.  
 
It was recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission 
and adopt the following entitled Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from 
Residential 6 (R-6 CD) to General Business (GB) with development plan approval 
required separately.  While not entirely compliant with the recommendation of the City’s 
adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan, the proposed rezoning would be compatible with 
the surrounding Shopping Center and General Business zoning.  Consent Agenda 
Approval.  Aycock/Ham (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-52 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH 
CAROLINA CODE OF ORDINANCES” 
 

Z-15-19 Mary Sue Fallin – East side of Fallin Boulevard between N. Berkeley 
Boulevard and Central Heights Road.  Ordinance Adopted.  Applicant is requesting a 
zoning change of the property from NB (Neighborhood Business) to GB (General 
Business). 

 
The property is zoned neighborhood business and is currently vacant and undeveloped. 
 
On Monday, October 24, 1994, Goldsboro City Council approved a rezoning change for 
subject property from R-16 (Residential) to Neighborhood Business (NB).   
 
Frontage:   581 ft. (Fallin Blvd.) 
  691 ft. (Central Heights Rd.) 
     
Area:    385,807 sq. ft., or 8.85 acres 
  
Zoning: Neighborhood Business (NB)   
 
As previously stated, the applicant is requesting a zoning change from NB 
(Neighborhood Business) to General Business (GB).   
 
Surrounding Zoning:  
  
North:  R-6 CD (Residential) 
   
South: RM-8 (Residential Manufactured), I-2 CD (General Industry),    
 R-16 RM-NC (Residential-Manufactured Non-Conforming); 
  
East:   RM-8 (Residential Manufactured Non-Conforming), R-16            
 (Residential); and 
 
West:   GB (General Business) 
 
The City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan recommends commercial development for the 
property. 



13 
 
 

City water and sewer are available to serve the property.  Subject area is located in a 
Special Flood Hazard Area (100-year floodplain). 
 
The subject property has frontage along Fallin Boulevard, which will be extended from 
Berkeley Boulevard to Central Heights Road by the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation.  These improvements are part of an overall project to realign Central 
Heights Road and Royall Ave at Berkeley Boulevard.  These improvements are 
scheduled to begin construction in July 2020 with a construction duration of 24 months.    
Currently, there are no plans for development of the property.  The applicant believes the 
marketability of the property would be enhanced if rezoned to General Business. 
At the public hearing held on July 15, 2019, no one spoke for or against the request. 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on July 29, 2019, recommended 
approval of the change of zone request with development plan approval required 
separately.  
 
Staff recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and 
adopt the following entitled Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from 
Neighborhood Business (NB) to General Business (GB) with development plan approval 
required separately.  The zoning change would be consistent with the City’s adopted 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan which recommends commercial development.  Consent 
Agenda Approval.  Aycock/Ham (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-53 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH 
CAROLINA CODE OF ORDINANCES” 
 

Site Plan Modification – Alex Economy Mobile Home Park.  Approved.  The 
property is located on the south side of Central Heights Road between Berkeley 
Boulevard and Thoroughfare Road. 
 
Frontage:   297.65 ft. (Central Heights Road) 
Area:    2.88 Acres 
Zoning:  R-16 Residential  
 
The property was annexed in 1989. The site is currently occupied as a non-conforming 
26-lot mobile home park.   
 
North Carolina Department of Transportation will be realigning Central Heights Road at 
Berkeley Boulevard with Royall Avenue by shifting Central Heights Road to the north 
side of the Railroad.  These improvements will also extend Fallin Boulevard to the South 
and Oak Forest Road to the North. 
 
The extension of Oak Forest Road to the North results in right-a-way acquisition through 
the existing non-conforming mobile home park resulting in the loss of 15 units.   
 
Because of the road improvements, the applicant is requesting the relocation of two 
existing mobile home units and the placement of a new mobile home within the non-
conforming mobile home park.   
     
Per the City’s Unified Development Ordinance Section 5.6.10 Nonconforming 
Manufactured Home Parks and Section 5.3.3.3 Building Design Standards adopted April 
4, 2005 the relocation of existing units and placement of a new mobile home would 
increase the nonconformity of the property.     
 
The applicant is requesting the following modifications due to the road improvements: 
 

1. Modification of Section 5.6.10 Nonconforming Manufactured Home Parks 
standards regarding nonconforming mobile home parks that have less than 
80% occupancy rate shall cease operation within 180 days and be brought 
into compliance with City zoning standards.   

  



14 
 
 

2. Modification of Section 5.3.3.3 Building Design Standards for the 
relocation of two existing units as follows: 
a. Roof Pitch; 
b. Exterior Siding; 
c. Visible Rust; 
d. Permanent Foundation; and 
e. Placement along street frontage (parallel) 

 
3. Modification of Section 5.3.3.3 Building Design Standards for the 

placement of a new mobile home as follows: 
a. Permanent Foundation; and 
b. Placement along street frontage (parallel) 

 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on July 29, 2019, recommended 
approval of relocation of two mobile homes and placement of one new mobile home with 
modifications. 
 
Staff recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and 
approve the site plans for Alex Economy MHP with the following modifications: 
 

1. Relocation of two mobile homes with the following modifications: 
a) Modification of Section 5.6.10 Nonconforming Manufactured 

Home Parks standards regarding nonconforming mobile home 
parks that have less than 80% occupancy rate shall cease operation 
within 180 days and be brought into compliance with City zoning 
standards.   

 
b) Modification of Section 5.3.3.3 Building Design Standards for the 

relocation of two existing units as follows: 
1) Roof Pitch; 
2) Exterior Siding; 
3) Visible Rust; 
4) Permanent Foundation; and 
5) Placement along street frontage (parallel) 

 
2. Modification of Section 5.3.3.3 Building Design Standards for the 

placement of a new mobile home as follows: 
a. Permanent Foundation; and 
b. Placement along street frontage (parallel). Consent Agenda 

Approval.  Aycock/Ham (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 

S-6-19 Goldsboro Business Park (Preliminary Subdivision Plat).  Approved.  
The property is located on the east side of Patetown Road between Alpha Court and 
Industry Court. 
 
Frontage:   493 ft. – Patetown Road (approx.) 
Frontage:   418 ft. – Eleventh Street (approx.) 
Area:  108.6 Acres 
Total Lots:   17 
Zoning:   I-2 General Industrial 
 
Areas in Lots 
Lot No. 1: 4.00 Acres Lot No. 10: 4.99 Acres 
Lot No. 2: 5.00 Acres Lot No. 11: 5.05 Acres  
Lot No. 3: 5.63 Acres Lot No. 12: 5.06 Acres 
Lot No. 4: 5.01 Acres Lot No. 13: 4.25 Acres 
Lot No. 5: 4.99 Acres Lot No. 14: 2.86 Acres 
Lot No. 6: 4.99 Acres Lot No. 15: 5.53 Acres 
Lot No. 7: 5.01 Acres Lot No. 16: 5.04 Acres 
Lot No. 8: 5.00 Acres Lot No. 17: 5.03 Acres 
Lot No. 9: 5.08 Acres 
 



15 
 
 

The property was rezoned from R-16 Residential to I-2 General Industry by City Council 
on July 16, 2018. 
 
The submitted 17-lot preliminary subdivision plat shows two points of ingress and egress.  
Main entrance is located off Patetown Road with a secondary entrance located off 
Eleventh Street. Both entrance drives will contain 60 ft. right-of-ways with a 35 ft. wide 
paved surface.   
 
Staff is working with the developer regarding Street names and streets will be designed in 
accordance with City and NCDOT standards. The developer shall obtained approval for 
entrance driveways through NCDOT and the City of Goldsboro.   
 
Sidewalks are shown along one side of interior streets throughout the development. 
Sidewalks are not shown along Patetown Road or Eleventh Street and are not indicated as 
a recommended pedestrian facility on the 2040 Recommended Pedestrian Facilities Map.  
The developer is requesting a modification of the fee in lieu of sidewalk installation along 
Patetown Road and Eleventh Street in the amount of $13,788.00. 
 
Water and Sewer capacity is available to serve the subject property.  An agreement is in 
place between the developer and the City of Goldsboro regarding extension of water and 
sewer lines to serve the property.  Stormwater calculations for the site are being reviewed 
by the City’s Engineering Department for compliance with the City’s Stormwater 
Management requirements.  
 
Required landscape buffers have been indicated on the preliminary subdivision plat.  
Street trees, Vehicular Surface Area landscaping and buffering standards will be 
addressed by individual site plans for each lot at time of development.     
 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on July 29, 2019, recommended 
approval of the 17-lot preliminary subdivision plat with a modification of the fee in lieu 
of sidewalk installation in the amount of $13,788.00.  
  
Staff recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and 
approve the 17-Lot Preliminary Subdivision Plat with the following modification: 
 

1. Modification of the fee in lieu of sidewalk installation in the amount of  
$13,788.00. Consent Agenda Approval.  Aycock/Ham (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
Goldsboro/Wayne Transportation Authority Board Re-Appointment.  

Resolution Adopted.  On July 6, 2015, Mr. Bob Waller was appointed to serve his first 
term on the Goldsboro/Wayne Transportation Authority Board. Mr. Waller was 
reappointed on June 25, 2018.  Mr. Waller’s appointment expired June 25, 2019.   
 
Resolution 1998-67, passed on October 5, 1998 states that members shall be appointed to 
serve one year terms and that members may be reappointed so long as no member serves 
six (6) consecutive years.  
 
It is recommended that Mr. Bob Waller be reappointed to a fifth term expiring on August 
5, 2020.   
 
Staff recommended Council adopt the following entitled resolution re-appointing Bob 
Waller to the Goldsboro/Wayne Transportation Authority Board. Consent Agenda 
Approval.  Aycock/Ham (4 Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-63  “RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO 
GOLDSBORO/WAYNE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY BOARD”  
 

End of Consent Agenda.   
  
 City Manager’s Report.  No report. 
 



16 
 
 

Mayor and Councilmembers’ Reports and Recommendations.  Mayor Allen 
read the following Proclamation: 

 
Proclamation – 36th Annual National Night Out.  Mayor Allen proclaimed 

Tuesday, August 6, 2019 as the 36th Annual National Night Out in the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina and called upon citizens of the City of Goldsboro to join the National 
Association of Town Watch in supporting the “36th Annual National Night Out” on 
August 6, 2019.  

 
Councilmember Aycock reminded everyone school will be starting back soon and 

there are several drives going on for school supplies. 
 
Councilmember Ham stated no comment. 
 
Councilmember Foster stated no comment.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway encouraged everyone to support National Night Out. 
 
Councilmember Williams stated I just want to acknowledge Councilmember 

Stevens, we didn’t always get along, I still appreciate his service.  He will be missed in 
some ways.  I wish him luck in his endeavors.   

 
Mayor Allen stated the Chamber hosted a scavenger hunt for the new teachers 

coming in, it was a great event.  Mayor Allen stated at the last meeting Councilmember 
Stevens verbally resigned.  Our ordinances stated he had to do so in writing, he did that 
today and at the 5:00 meeting Council voted to accept his resignation.  At our next 
meeting, Council will discuss whether we replace him or if we have to replace him.  
 
 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:32 p.m. 
 
            

___________________________ 
       Chuck Allen 
       Mayor 
   
       ___________________________ 
       Melissa Capps, MMC /NCCMC 
       City Clerk  



Item __________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
October 7, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Special Revenue Fund Budget Amendment – Community Development 
Block Grant Special Revenue fund  

BACKGROUND: The City of Goldsboro applied for an infrastructure grant with the North 
Carolina Department of Commerce Rural Housing Recovery Fund for 
improvements to Keller Way Extension for Adair Place.  The purpose of the 
project was to combat critical housing shortages in the City.  The City was 
awarded a $350,000.00 grant on May 13, 2019. 

DISCUSSION: The developer has completed the improvements and will be seeking 
reimbursement.  In order for staff to execute the terms of the grant 
agreement, the expenditures must be appropriated.  Staff recommends the 
appropriation of the $350,000.00 for the infrastructure project and this 
will be funded with state grant revenue. 

The City will execute an agreement with the developer with regards to the 
payment of eligible expenditures. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
1. Adopt the attached Ordinance amending the Community Development

Block Grant Special Revenue fund to appropriate expenditures for the
Keller Way Extension for Adair Place.

Date:  __________________ 
Catherine F. Gwynn, Finance Director 

Date:  __________________ 
Tim Salmon, City Manager 

10/2/2019

B



ORDINANCE NO. 2019- 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND FOR THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND (22) 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro experienced extensive damage from Hurricane 

Matthew and Hurricane Florence which compounded challenges of offering affordable, 
quality housing for low-to-moderate income households; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has proactively sought opportunities to combat the critical 

housing shortages in the City by applying for grants, and Council approved the filing of a 
grant with the North Carolina Department of Commerce Rural Housing Recovery Fund 
for infrastructure improvements to Keller Way Extension for Adair Place (the “Project”) 
at the March 18, 2019 meeting; and 

 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Commerce awarded the City a 

$350,000 grant on May 13, 2019 for the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate the expenditures for the grant so that 

staff may begin executing the terms of the grant agreement, and this will be funded with 
revenue from state grants. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro that the following Capital Project Ordinance is hereby adopted: 
  

1. Establishing a Revenue Line Item entitled “NC Department of Commerce Grant” 
(22-0003-8505) 

2. Establishing an Expenditure Line Item entitled “Keller Way Extension for Adair 
Place” (22-3224-5742) 

 
 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the ________ day of 
___________________ 2019. 
     
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: _____________________________    
City Clerk      
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



STA7?.
Roy COOPER

j

‘j• ANTHONYM COPELAND

•.O\ Ci ‘0/

May [4, 2019

Randy Guthrie
Interim City Manager
City of Goldsboro
P0 Drawer A
Goldsboro, NC 27533-970 I

Re: Rural housing Recovery Infrastructure Award Date: 5/13/2019
Grant Award NohifIcatioH Award Amount: $350,000.00
Contract Reference: 2019-113-3215-2545
Project Title: Keller Way Extension for Adair P13cc

Deir Mr. Guthrie:

I am pleased to announce that the Ciy oiGoldsboro has been selected for funding to assist with your housing recovery
infrastructure efForts.

Mv staffand I look forward to working with cmi on this imporlant project lfvou have any questions. please contact the
program director. Melody AJms at (919)814—4661 or melody.adams’ occommercecom.

Sincerely.

Anthony M. Copeland
Secretacy of Commerce

Srar nf Non Ci Carc; kija I Departrcnt o Cnrninerc

ijl Nir WUn:inqin S!recr 1301 NI[ 5cr cc Cc k’kiç}i. NC 330!
l9 I I 4,00 T



Rural Economic Development Grant At:,lfeemcnt 
Rural Housing Recovery - Infrastructure 2019-133-3 215-2545 

The North Carolina Department of Commerce ("Commerce"), an agency of the State of North 
Carolina ("State"), enters into this Rural Housing Recovery - Infrastructure Grant Agreement ("Grant 
Agreement") with the City of Goldsboro (the "Grantee"), each being referred to individually as a 
"Party" and, collectively with Commerce, the "Parties". 

WHEREAS, The North Carolina General Assembly ("General Assembly") has determined that it 
is the policy of the State to assist with disaster recovery; and 

WHEREAS, Commerce, through its Rural Economic Development Division administers the 
Rural Housing Recovery Fund that provides grants to local governments in hurricane impacted areas to 
construct public infrastructure that supports affordable residential housing developments that are located 
outside the 100-year floodplain. For the purposes of this Grant Agreement, public infrastructure shall 
include water, sewer, roads, sidewalks, storm drainage, lighting, parking, broadband and other similar 
infrastructure projects; 

WHEREAS, the Grantee has agreed to partner with an affordable residential housing project that 
has received a nine percent (9%) new construction low income housing tax credit from the North Carolina 
Housing Finance Agency ("NCHF A") for the 2016, 2017 or 2018 funding cycle and Grantee has agreed 
to ensure that the residential housing that is developed will remain affordable for the period required by 
NCHFA; 

WHEREAS, the County where the Project is located has been designated as a Tier l or Tier 2 
County pursuant to the 2019 North Carolina Development Tier Designations; 

WHEREAS, without limitation, the North Carolina Secretary of Commerce has awarded the grant 
from the Rural Housing Recovery Fund to the Grantee for the Project based upon the Grantee's 
Application, any subsequent supporting materials approved by Commerce supporting the Application and 
the terms, conditions and representations contained in this Grant Agreement, including Exhibits A 
through C; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and such other valuable 
consideration as set out herein, the Parties mutually agree to the following terms and conditions: 

l . Grant Agreement Documents/Scope of Project 

This Grant Agreement consists of the following documents: 

(a) This Grant Agreement, including all documents incorporated by reference herein. 
(b) Grantee's Application and Scope of Project (Exhibit A). 
(c) Payment Schedule (Exhibit 8). 
(d) Reporting Schedule (Exhibit C) 

The Grantee agrees that it shall develop, perform and complete the work set out in the 
Grantee's Application and Exhibit A herein ("Project"). 

1 



Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement 
Rural Housing Recovery - Infrastructure 2019-133-3215-2545 

2. Changes in the Project or Other Conditions. 

(a), A "Project Change" is any material alteration, addition, deletion or expansion of the 
Project, including (without limitation) material changes to construction or other 
infrastructure improvement, and any filing of bankruptcy by the Grantee. Prior to 
implementing a proposed Project Change, the Grantee shall submit the proposed 
Project Change in writing to Commerce for review. The failure of the Grantee to do so 
will subject it to the penalties and remedies set forth in Paragraph 13(b) of this Grant 
Agreement, unless Commerce (in its sole discretion) expressly waives this requirement 
of pre-implementation review in writing. In any event, there shall be no Project 
Changes unless expressly approved of by Commerce in its sole discretion in a separate, 
written agreement stating, if applicable, the costs and schedule for completing the 
Project Change. 

(b). Additionally, the Grantee shall immediately notify Commerce of any change in 
conditions or local law, or any other event, which may significantly affect its ability to 
oversee, administer or perfonn this Grant Agreement or the Project. In its sole 
discretion, Commerce may deem such a change in conditions, local law or other event 
to constitute a Project Change. 

3. Term of Grant Al!reement. The effective period of this Grant Agreement shall commence on 
5/13/2019 ("Effective Date") and shall tenninate on 5/13/2022 unless terminated on an earlier 
date under the tenns of this Grant Agreement (either one of which dates shall constitute the 
"Tennination Date") or unless extended for an express term in writing by Commerce. 

4. Funding and Administrative Expenses. 

5. 

(a). Commerce grants to the Grantee an amount not to exceed $350,000.00 for expenditures 
directly relating to the Project. If Commerce determines that the actual costs of the 
Project are less than the Grant amount, Commerce, in its sole discretion, may reduce 
the amount of the Grant accordingly. If the Grantee detenriines that the actual costs of 
the Project arc less than the Grant amount, it shall report so to Commerce and return 
any SU'l)lus Grant funds it has received to Commerce. 

(b). The Grantee hereby represents and warrants that all Grant funds shall be utilized 
exclusively for the pU'l)OSe of the Project solely as set forth in Exhibit A and consistent 
with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and requirements, and that the Grantee shall 
not make or approve of any improper expenditure of Grant funds. 

Independent Status of the Grantee. 

The Grantee is an entity independent from Commerce. The Grant Agreement, the 
Project and any actions taken pursuant to them shall not be deemed to create a 
partnership or joint venture between or among Commerce, the Grantee or any third 
party. Nor shall the Grant Agreement or the Project be construed to make the Grantee 
(including its e_mpfoyees, agents, members or officials) or any third-party employees, 
agents, members or officials of Commerce. Neither the Grantee nor any third party 
shall have the ability to bind Commerce to any agreement for payment of goods or 
services or represent to any person that they have such ability. 

2 



Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement 
Rural Housing Recovery - Infrastructure 2019-133-3215-2545 

6/ Method of Payment. Commerce shall pay the Grant funds to the Grantee in accordance with 
the Payment Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B after receipt of written requests for 
payment from the Grantee certifying that the conditions for such payment under this Grant 
Agreement have been met and that the Grantee is entitled to receive the amount so requested 
and any other documentation that may be required by Commerce. 

7. Obligation of Funds. The Grantee shall not obligate Grant funds prior to the Effective Date or 
subsequent to the Termination Date of this Grant Agreement. All obligations outstanding as of 
the Termination Date shall be liquidated within thirty days after the Termination Date. 

8. Project Records. 

(a). The Grantee shall maintain full, accurate and verifiable financial records, supporting 
documents and all other pertinent data for the Project in such a manner as to clearly 
identify and document the expenditure of the State funds provided under this Grant 
Agreement separate from accounts for other awards, monetary contributions or other 
revenue sources for this Project. 

(b). . The Grantee shall retain all financial records, supporting documents and all other 
pertinent records related lo the Grant Agreement and the Project in accordance with 
basic State records retention policy standards for a period of five (5) years from the 
Termination Date. In the event such records are audited, all such records shall be 
retained beyond the five-year period until the audit is concluded and any and all audit 
findings have been resolved. 

9. Monitorinl!. Reports and Auditing. 

(a). The Grantee agrees to ensure compliance and provide its assistance with such 
monitoring and auditing requirements as the State may request, including following the 
Termination Date of this Grant Agreement. Additionally, the Grantee shall regularly 
monitor all performance under Grant-supported activities to ensure that time schedules 
are being met and other performance goals are being achieved. 

(b). The Grantee shall furnish Commerce detailed written progress reports according to the 
time periods specified in Exhibit C or as otherwise requested by Commerce. Such 
reports should describe the progress made by the Grantee toward achieving the 
purpose(s) of the Project. Such descriptions should include the successes and problems 
encountered during the reporting period. Failure to submit a required report by the 
scheduled submission date will result in the withholding of any forthcoming payment 
until Commerce is in receipt of the delinquent report and the report meets with 
Commerce's approval, in Commerce's sole discretion. 

(c). The Grantee acknowledges and agrees that, with regard to the Grant funds, Grantee 
will be subject to the audit and reporting requirements prescribed by N.C.G.S § 159-34, 
Local Government Finance Act - Annual independent audit; rules and regulations. 
Such audit and reporting requirements may vary depending upon the amount and 
source of Grant funding received by the Grantee and are subject to change from time to 
time. 

(d). Within thirty (30) days after the Termination Date, the Grantee shall submit a final 
report to Commerce describing the activities and accomplishments of the Project. The 
final report shall include a review of performance and activities over the entire Project 

3 



Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement 
Rural Housing Recovery - Infrastructure 2019-133-3215-2545 

period. In the final report, the Grantee should describe the Project, how it was 
implemented, to what degree its established objectives were met, the difficulties 
encountered, what was changed and the cost. 

(e), TI1e Grantee grants the State and any of its related agencies, commissions or 
departments (including, without limitation, Commerce, the North Carolina State 
Auditor and the North Carolina Office of State Budget and Management) and any of 
their authorized representatives, at all reasonable times and as often as necessary 
(including after the Termination Date), access to and the right to inspect, copy, 
monitor, and examine all of the books, papers, records and other documents relating to 
the Grant Agreement or the Project. In addition, the Grantee agrees to comply at any 
time, including after the Termination Date, with any requests by the State (including, 
without limitation, Commerce) for other financial and organizational materials to 
permit the State to comply with its fiscal monitoring responsibilities or to evaluate the 
short- and long-range impact of its programs. 

10. Termination: Availability of Funds. 

(a). If the Grantee fails to fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations or violates · 
any of the covenants or stipulations under this Grant Agreement, the Grantee agrees 
that Commerce has the right to terminate this Grant Agreement by giving the Grantee 
written notice specifying the Termination Date of this Grant Agreement, which 
Commerce may determine in its sole discretion. Upon such termination, Commerce 
shall have no responsibility to make additional Grant payments. Upon such 
termination, the Grantee shall not expend any Grant funds without Commerce's 
express written authorization and shall return all unspent Grant funds to Commerce 
upon demand. · 

(b). The obligations of Commerce to pay any amounts under this Grant Agreement are 
contingent upon the availability and continuation of funds for such purpose. If funds 
for the Grant become unavailable, the Grantee agrees that Commerce has the right to 
terminate this Grant Agreement by giving written notice specifying the Tennination 
Date of this Grant Agreement, which Commerce shall determine in its sole discretion. 
Upon such termination, the State shall have no responsibility to make additional Grant 
payments. Further, upon such termination, the Grantee shall not expend any Grant 
funds without Commerce's express written authorization and shall return all unspent 
Grant funds to Commerce upon demand. 

11. Liabilities and Loss. The Grantee hereby agrees to release, indemnify and hold harmless the 
State (including, without limitation, Commerce), and their respective members, officers, 
directors, employees, agents and attorneys (together, the "Indemnified Parties"), from any 
claims of third parties arising out of any act or omission of the Grantee or any third party in 
connection with the performance of this Grant Agreement or the Project, and for all losses 
arising from their implementation. Without limiting the foregoing, the Grantee hereby releases 
the Indemnified Parties from, and agrees that such Indemnified Parties are not liable for, and 
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnified Parties against, any and all liability or 
loss, cost or expense, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, fines, penalties 
and civil judgments, resulting from or arising out of or in connection with or pertaining to, any 
loss or damage to property or any injury to or death of any person occurring in connection with 
the Project, or resulting from any defect in the fixtures, machinery, equipment or other 
property used in connection with the Project or arising out of, pertaining to, or having any 
connection with, the Project or the financing thereof (whether arising out of acts, omissions, or 

4 



Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement 
Rural Housing Recovery - Infrastructure 2019-133-3215-2545 

12. 

negligence of the Grantee or of any third party, or of any of their agents, contractors, servants, 
employees, licensees, lessees, or assignees), including any claims and losses accruing to or 
resulting from any and all subcontractors, material men, laborers and any other person, firm or 
corporation furnishing or supplying work, services, materials or supplies in connection with 
the Project. 

Grantee Representations and Warranties. The Grantee hereby represents and warrants that: 

(a). 

(b). 

(c). 

The execution and delivery of this Grant Agreement have been duly authorized by all 
necessary Grantee action and are not in contravention of law or in contravention of the 
provisions of any indenture agreement or undertaking to which the Grantee is a party or 
by which it is bound. · 
There is no action, suit, proceeding, or investigation at law or in equity or before any 
court, public board or body pending, or to the knowledge of the Grantee, threatened 
against or affecting it that could or might adversely affect the Project or any of the 
transactions contemplated by this Grant Agreement, the validity or enforceability of 
this Grant Agreement, or the abilities of the Grantee to discharge its obligations under 
this Grant Agreement. If it is subsequently found that an action, suit, proceeding, or 
investigation did or could threaten or affect the development of the Project, the Grantee 
shall be liable to Commerce for repayment of the entire amount of the Grant and this 
Grant Agreement may be terminated by Commerce effective upon notice. 
No consent or approval is necessary from any governmental authority as a condition to 
the execution and delivery of this Grant Ab,reement by the Grantee or the performance 
of any of its obligations hereunder, or all such requisite governmental consents or 
approvals have been obtained. The Grantee shall provide Commerce with evidence of 
the existence of any such necessary consents or approvals at the time of the execution 
of this Grant Agreement. 

13. Additional Repayment Reguirements and Remedies. 

(a). The repayment requirements and remedies addressed in this Paragraph 13 are in 
addition to those repayment requirements and other remedies set forth elsewhere in this 
Grant Agreement, including the requirements to repay unspent Grant funds. No 
remedy conferred or reserved by or to the State is intended to be exclusive of any other 
available remedy or remedies, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and 
shall be in addition to every other remedy provided for in this Grant Agreement, or 
now or hereinafter existing at law, in equity, or by statute, and any such right or power 
may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. 

(b). If there is a breach of any of the requirements, covenants or agreements in this Grant 
Agreement, or if there are any representations or warranties which are untrue as to a 
material fact in this Grant Agreement or the Project (including the performance 
thereof), the Grantee agrees that Commerce may require repayment from the Grantee 
of an amount of Grant funds to be determined in Commerce's sole discretion but not to 
exceed the amount of Grant funds the Grantee has already received under this Grant 
Agreement. 

5 



Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement 
Rural Housing Recovery - Infrastructure 2019-133-3215-2545 

I 
14. No Waiver by the State. Failure of the State (including, without limitation, Commerce) at any 

time to require perfonnance of any term or provision of this Grant Agreement shall in no 
manner affect the rights of the State at a later date to enforce the same or to enforce any future 
compliance with or perfonnance of any of the terms or provisions hereof. No waiver of the 
State of any condition or the breach of any term, provision or representation contained in this 
Grant Agreement, whether by conduct or otherwise, in any one or more instances, shall be 
deemed to be or construed as a further or continuing waiver of any such condition or of the 
breach of that or any other term, provision or representation. 

15. Special Provisions and Conditions. 

(a). Non-discrimination. The Grantee agrees not to discriminate by reason of age, race, 
religion, color, sex, national origin or disability related to the activities of this Grant 
Agreement. 

(b). Compliance with Laws. The Grantee shall at all times observe and comply with all 
laws, regulations, codes, rules, ordinances and other requirements (together, "Laws") 
of the state, federal and local governments which may in any manner affect the 
performance of the Grant Agreement or the Project. 

(c). Non-Assilmability. The Grantee shall not assign or transfer any interest in the 
Agreement without the prior written consent of Commerce; provided, however, that 
claims for money due to Grantee from Commerce under this Agreement may be 
assigned to any commercial bank or other financial institution without such approval. 

16. Notice. All notices required or permitted to be delivered hereur:ider and all communications in 
respect hereof shall be in writing and shall be deemed given when personally delivered or 
when deposited in the United States mails, certified, return receipt requested, first class, 
postage prepaid and addressed as follows: 

If to Commerce: 

If to the Grantee: 

Attn: Melody Adams 
Director, Rural Grant Programs 
North Carolina Department of Commerce 
Rural Economic Development Division 
30 I North Wilmington Street 
4346 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-4346 

Attn: Randy Gutbric 
Interim City Manager 
City of Goldsboro 
PO Drawer A 
Goldsboro, NC 27533-9701 

Any other address or notice addressed to the attention of such other individual as Commerce or the 
Grantee shall have specified in a notice delivered pursuant to this subsection. 

6 



Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement 
Rural Housing Recovery - Infrastructure 2019-133-3215-2545 

) 7. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

Entire A!!J"eement. This Grant Agreement supersedes all prior agreements between Commerce 
and the Grantee with regard to the Project and expresses their entire understanding with 
respect to the transactions contemplated herein, and shall not be amended, modified or altered 
except pursuant to a writing signed by both Commerce and the Grantee. 

Execution. This Grant Agreement shall be executed in digital or original fonnat, each of 
which, when executed, shall be deemed an original, and such counterparts, together, shall 
constitute one and the same Grant Agreement which shall be sufficiently evidenced by one of 
such original counterparts. The highest elected official of the Grantee shall execute this Grant 
Agreement in its exact fonn ( unless Commerce approves of a change to the Grant Agreement's 
terms in writing) and shall return one executed original Grant Agreement to Commerce in 
digital or original fonn. 

Construction. Jurisdiction and Venue. This Grant Agreement shall be construed and gov~rned 
by the laws of the State of North Carolina. The Grantee agrees and submits, solely for matters 
concerning this Grant Agreement, to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of North Carolina 
and agrees, solely for such purposes, that the only venue for any legal proceedings shall be 
Wake County, North Carolina. The place of this Grant Agreement, and all transactions and 
agreements relating to it, and their situs and forum, shall be Wake County, North Carolina, 
where all matters, whether sounding in contract, tort, or otherwise, relating to its validity, 
construction, interpretation, and enforcement, shall be determined. 

Severability. Each provision of this Grant Agreement is intended to be severable and, if any 
provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such 
invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect or impair any other provision of this 
Grant Agreement, but this Grant Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable provision had not been contained herein. 

7 



Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement 
Rural Housing Recovery - 1Infrastructurc 2019-133-3215-2545 

21. Acceptance. If the Grantee agrees to the Grant conditions as stated, please return the 
executed documents specified in Paragraph 1. This Grant may be withdrawn if Commerce 
has not received such documents within thirty (30) days from the date of the cover letter from 
Commerce to the Grantee accompanying this Grant Agreement and its Exhibits, 

IN WITNESSETH WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Grant Agreement as of the date 
first above written. 

City of Goldsboro 

Signature: [SEAL] 

Printed Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

.,.,.~ . . ' t h I d't d . th • i r"~ 1ns~n:rr:r'.:;n as ooen preau I e 1n e 
:~YT·~,r t0.:;uirtJd by the Local Government 
:;:.i..:;at r:nd Fltcoi Contrci Act" 

,Signature ~I eyi~ 

North Carolina Department of Commerce 

Signature: (SEAL] 

Printed Name: Anthony M. Copeland 

Title: Secretary of the North Carolina Department of Commerce 

Date: S--ljr/40/f 

8 



Rural Economic Development Grant Agreement 
Rural Housing Recovery - lnfrhstructurc 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

2019-133-3215-2545 

Summary: This project will focus on street, stonnwater, sidewalks, parking, and will create 72 housing units. The 
NCHFA Tax Credits were awarded in 2017. 

EXHIBITB 
PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

The Department of Commerce will issue grant payments up to the total grant amount upon receipt of the following: 
1. A completed financial request form, 
2. Copies of eligible project invoices that support the request amount, and 
3. Satisfaction of all reporting requirements at the time of request. 

Eligible expenditures may not be incurred prior to the effective date or subsequent to the termination date of the grant. 
Payments are subject to the availability of funds. 

EXHIBIT C 
REPORTING SCHEDULE 

Progress reports are due on January 15th and July 151h for each year that the grant remains open. The final report and job 
verification documentation are due at the time of project completion or no later than 30 days after the grant end-date, 
whichever is sooner. The reporting schedule remains in effect for the duration of the grant including time extensions. 

Failure to submit progress reports as required: 
1. Will result in non-payment of payment requests, 
2. Can result in the immediate termination of the grant, 
3. Can result in the demand for immediate repayment of any funds paid by Commerce, and 
4. Will negatively impact the grantee's eligibility for future Commerce grants. 

All forms, including reporting and request for payment, can be found on the Commerce website at 
http://www.nccommerce.com/rd/rural-grants-programs/forms . Email completed forms and reports to 
rgpreportsra:~nccommcrcc.com . 































Item _______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

OCTOBER 7, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Resolution – Rural Housing Recovery Infrastructure Grant - DISBURSEMENT 

BACKGROUND: The City of Goldsboro applied for a grant on February 22, 2019 for funding by 
North Carolina Department of Commerce through the Rural Economic 
Development Division for the Rural Housing Recovery Infrastructure Grant in the 
amount of $350,000.  Such Grant was awarded on May 14, 2019 for the work 
which was included in the application, and the work has now been completed by 
Caliber Builders, LLC. 

DISCUSSION: The Rural Housing Recovery Infrastructure Grant Application submitted exhibited 
a public-private partnership between the City of Goldsboro and Adair Place 
Apartments consisting of infrastructure improvements including: construction of 
street extension of Keller Way (fka Keenway Drive) (a public street) per City of 
Goldsboro standards, storm drainage, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, parking lots, ABC 
stone and paving.  The project will add to the affordable housing stock three newly 
constructed three-story apartment buildings containing 72 units including a 
community building; thirty-six will be three-bedroom units, 24 two-bedroom 
units and 12 one-bedroom units. Location of the project is 200, 202, 204 & 206 
Keller Way, Goldsboro NC. 

As part of the application process for the Rural Housing Recovery Infrastructure 
Grant, the City of Goldsboro adopted a resolution in support of the application 
submission to North Carolina Department of Commerce for rural housing recovery 
infrastructure funds to address critical housing shortages caused by recent 
hurricanes.  No matching funds are required of the City of Goldsboro in 
conjunction with the Rural Housing Recovery Infrastructure Grant. 

Now, adoption of a resolution authorizing the finance director for the expenditure 
of the grant funds for the completed work to the contractor, Caliber Builders, LLC, 
in the amount of $247,252.00, and to the City of Goldsboro for the expenses it 
incurred in administering the project in the amount of $102,748.00.  

C



  

 
RECOMMENDATION: By motion, adopt the attached resolution: 
 

1. Approving the disbursement of the grant funds received from the North 
Carolina Department of Commerce for rural housing recovery infrastructure,  
the Rural Housing Recovery Infrastructure Grant, in the amount of 
$350,000.00 total to address critical housing shortages caused by recent 
hurricanes. 
 

2. Authorize the Finance Director to disburse to Caliber Builders, LLC the sum 
of $247,252.00 from said grant funds, and disburse to the City of Goldsboro 
the sum of $102,748.00 from said grant funds for total disbursement of 
$350,000.00. 

 
 
Date:               

Catherine F. Gwynn, Finance Director 
 
 
Date:               
        Tim Salmon, City Manager 

10/2/2019



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019 – 
 

RESOLUTION FOR DISBURSEMENT OF THE RURAL HOUSING RECOVERY 
INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT RECEIVED FROM THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT 

OF COMMERCE 
 
 

 WHEREAS, due to recent hurricanes, the need for safe, decent and affordable housing in the 
Goldsboro area is greater than ever; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Commerce, through the Rural Economic 
Development Division, in conjunction with the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency, has awarded 
to the City of Goldsboro the Rural Housing Recovery Infrastructure Grant in the amount of 
$350,000.00 to address critical housing shortages caused by such storms; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the funding from this grant was provided for public infrastructure to support 
housing developments in communities impacted by recent hurricanes; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Adair Place Apartment development qualified for the disaster recovery 
funding, and the City of Goldsboro’s grant application dated February 22, 2019, which created a 
public-private partnership between the same, was awarded on May 14, 2019 which included and 
incorporated therein proposed infrastructure improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the infrastructure improvements have now been completed by Caliber Builders, LLC 
including: construction of street extension of Keller Way (fka Keenway Drive) (a public street) per 
City of Goldsboro standards, storm drainage, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, parking lots, ABC stone and 
paving; and 

 
WHEREAS, the project will add to the affordable housing stock three newly constructed three-story 
apartment buildings containing 72 units including a community building.  Thirty-six of the 72 total 
units will be three-bedroom units with the other 36 units to be 12 one-bedroom units and 24 two-
bedroom units.  Location of the project is 200, 202, 204 & 206 Keller Way, Goldsboro NC; and 

 
WHEREAS, as part of the application process for the Rural Housing Recovery Infrastructure Grant, 
the City of Goldsboro adopted a resolution in support of the application submission to North Carolina 
Department of Commerce for rural housing recovery infrastructure funds to address critical housing 
shortages caused by recent hurricanes; and no matching funds are required of the City of Goldsboro in 
conjunction with the Rural Housing Recovery Infrastructure Grant; and 

 
WHEREAS, said improvements have been completed, the expenditure of those funds is necessary and 
the adoption of this resolution is necessary to authorize the Finance Director for the City of Goldsboro 
for the expenditure of the grant funds so received for the completed work to the contractor, Caliber 
Builders, LLC, in the amount of $247,252.00, and to the City of Goldsboro for the expenses it 
incurred in administering the project in the amount of $102,748.00. 



 

 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that: 
 

1. The disbursement of the grant funds received from the North Carolina Department of 
Commerce for rural housing recovery infrastructure, the Rural Housing Recovery 
Infrastructure Grant, in the amount of $350,000.00 total to address critical housing shortages 
caused by recent hurricanes is hereby approved and authorized. 

 
2. The Finance Director for the City of Goldsboro is to disburse to Caliber Builders, LLC the 

sum of $247,252.00 from said grant funds for the completed improvements, and is to disburse 
to the City of Goldsboro the sum of $102,748.00 for administrative costs from said grant 
funds; all disbursements totaling $350,000.00, the extent of the grant received. 
 

3. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the 7th day of October, 2019.  
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: _____________________________    
City Clerk      
 



ITEM_____________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

OCTOBER 7, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Authorization to dispose of real property to Wayne County under N.C. 
General Statute §160A-274 (Sale, lease, exchange and joint use of 
governmental property) 

BACKGROUND: At the September 23, 2019 meeting, the Council voted to approve the 
disposal of its share in two lots to Wayne County, in exchange for the 
County to transfer its share of a lot co-owned by Wayne County and the 
City.  The governing bodies are granted this authority to exchange 
property, with or without consideration, through §160A-274. 

DISCUSSION: To recap the property being exchanged is as follows: 
City of Goldsboro to transfer to Wayne County 
306 N. Leslie Street 
Owner: City of Goldsboro 
Parcel # (REID): 0051601 Pin #: 3509263047 
Tax Value:  $5,530.00   Zoning: O&I 

702 Simmons Street 
Owner: City of Goldsboro and Wayne County 
Parcel # (REID): 0051602 Pin #: 3509263095 
Tax Value:  $2,590.00  Zoning: O&I 

Wayne County to transfer to City of Goldsboro 
204 N. Virginia Street 
Owners:  City of Goldsboro and Wayne County 
Parcel # (REID): 0047329 Pin #: 2599768954 
Tax Value:  $3,190.00  Zoning: R-6 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council, by motion: 

1. Adopt the attached resolution to exchange its interests in the named
properties with Wayne County, and authorize City staff to execute
instruments necessary to transfer ownership upon concurrence by
Wayne County Board of Commissioners.

Date: ______________________________________________ 
Catherine F. Gwynn, Finance Director 

Date: 
Tim Salmon, City Manager 

D



RESOLUTION NO. 2019- _____ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXCHANGE OF 
REAL PROPERTY WITH WAYNE COUNTY UNDER G.S. §160A-274  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns interests in certain property, 306 N. Leslie Street (NC Pin 

#3509263047 Parcel ID 0051601) and 702 Simmons Street (NC Pin #3509263095 Parcel ID 0051602), and 
Wayne County owns an interest in certain property, 204 N. Virginia Street (NC Pin #2599768954 Parcel ID 
0047329) ; and  

 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §160A-274 states that any governmental unit may, upon such 

terms and conditions as it deems wise, with or without consideration, exchange with, lease to, lease from, sell 
to, or purchase from any other governmental unit any interest in real or personal property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council and the Wayne County Board of Commissioners have identified the named 

properties that they deem in the best interest of each to exchange their interests in with no other consideration. 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, 

that: 
 

1) The City Council authorizes the exchange of its interests in the properties described above through North 
Carolina General Statute §160A-274. 

2) The City Council further authorizes and empowers City staff to execute the instruments necessary to 
convey such interests in the properties to Wayne County upon concurrence. 

 
This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this                                          _____________ 

day of                                                                     , 2019. 
 
 

        _____________________________ 
        Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: _____________________________    

City Clerk 



10/2/2019 ConnectGIS Feature Report

https://wayne.connectgis.com/DownloadFile.ashx?i=_ags_map21db5c1ef06a46658e1e216ac5d835e1x.htm&t=printid 1/2

Wayne
Printed October 02, 2019
See Below for Disclaimer



10/2/2019 ConnectGIS Feature Report

https://wayne.connectgis.com/DownloadFile.ashx?i=_ags_map21db5c1ef06a46658e1e216ac5d835e1x.htm&t=printid 2/2

OBJECTID
58433

PIN
2599768954

Owner Name
CITY OF GOLDSBORO

Co-Owner Name
WAYNE COUNTY

Owner Address 1
PO DRAWER A

Owner Address 2
 

Owner Address 3
 

Owner City
GOLDSBORO

Owner State
NC

Owner Zip
27533-9701

Unit or Apt
 

Deed Date
4/11/2018 12:00:00 AM

REID
0047329

Deed Book
3364

Deed Page
326

Sale Month
4

Sale Year
2018

Sale Price
0

Previous Deed Book
02286

Previous Deed Page
0080

Previous Sale Month
1

Previous Sales Year
2005

Previous Sale Price
22000

Property Use
08 - MULTIPLE RESIDENCE

Record Source
Owner

Property Address
204 N VIRGINIA ST

Legal Description
N VIRGINIA ST 1537-587

Acres
1

Neighborhood
01702

Account Number
75254500

Township Code
12

Building Value
0

Outbuilding Value
0

Land Value
3190

Total Market Value
3190

Total Assessed Value
3190

Vacant Or Improved
V

Vacant or Improved 2
I

Users of the GIS information/data contained in this web mapping application are hereby notified that the information was compiled from recorded deeds, plats and
other public records and data. Users are notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification of the data contained
in this information. The County of Wayne and the mapping companies or other entities assume no legal responsibility for the information contained herein. By accepting
this disclaimer you agree and understand the disclaimer.







10/2/2019 ConnectGIS Feature Report

https://wayne.connectgis.com/DownloadFile.ashx?i=_ags_map4f4de456d0074544bdf871701887b4bex.htm&t=printid 1/2

Wayne
Printed October 02, 2019
See Below for Disclaimer



10/2/2019 ConnectGIS Feature Report

https://wayne.connectgis.com/DownloadFile.ashx?i=_ags_map4f4de456d0074544bdf871701887b4bex.htm&t=printid 2/2

OBJECTID
66492

PIN
3509263047

Owner Name
CITY OF GOLDSBORO

Co-Owner Name
 

Owner Address 1
PO BOX A

Owner Address 2
 

Owner Address 3
 

Owner City
GOLDSBORO

Owner State
NC

Owner Zip
27533-9701

Unit or Apt
 

Deed Date
11/1/2008 12:00:00 AM

REID
0051601

Deed Book
2668

Deed Page
15

Sale Month
11

Sale Year
2008

Sale Price
0

Previous Deed Book
01032

Previous Deed Page
0455

Previous Sale Month
1

Previous Sales Year
1982

Previous Sale Price
11000

Property Use
01 - SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

Record Source
Owner

Property Address
306 N LESLIE ST

Legal Description
N LESLIE ST

Acres
1

Neighborhood
01802

Account Number
76121320

Township Code
12

Building Value
0

Outbuilding Value
0

Land Value
5530

Total Market Value
5530

Total Assessed Value
5530

Vacant Or Improved
I

Vacant or Improved 2
I

Users of the GIS information/data contained in this web mapping application are hereby notified that the information was compiled from recorded deeds, plats and
other public records and data. Users are notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification of the data contained
in this information. The County of Wayne and the mapping companies or other entities assume no legal responsibility for the information contained herein. By accepting
this disclaimer you agree and understand the disclaimer.



10/2/2019 ConnectGIS Feature Report

https://wayne.connectgis.com/DownloadFile.ashx?i=_ags_map0634c44f348547f493ac081c7f2c482ex.htm&t=printid 1/2

Wayne
Printed October 02, 2019
See Below for Disclaimer



10/2/2019 ConnectGIS Feature Report

https://wayne.connectgis.com/DownloadFile.ashx?i=_ags_map0634c44f348547f493ac081c7f2c482ex.htm&t=printid 2/2

OBJECTID
50500

PIN
3509263095

Owner Name
MURRAY JESSE WAYNE

Co-Owner Name
 

Owner Address 1
821 ARGO ST

Owner Address 2
 

Owner Address 3
 

Owner City
GOLDSBORO

Owner State
NC

Owner Zip
27530-2968

Unit or Apt
 

Deed Date
1/1/2013 12:00:00 AM

REID
0051602

Deed Book
0013E

Deed Page
552

Sale Month
1

Sale Year
2013

Sale Price
0

Previous Deed Book
0002E

Previous Deed Page
0529

Previous Sale Month
1

Previous Sales Year
2002

Previous Sale Price
0

Property Use
01 - SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

Record Source
Owner

Property Address
702 SIMMONS ST

Legal Description
E SIMMONS ST

Acres
1

Neighborhood
01802

Account Number
740618

Township Code
12

Building Value
0

Outbuilding Value
0

Land Value
2590

Total Market Value
2590

Total Assessed Value
2590

Vacant Or Improved
I

Vacant or Improved 2
I

Users of the GIS information/data contained in this web mapping application are hereby notified that the information was compiled from recorded deeds, plats and
other public records and data. Users are notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification of the data contained
in this information. The County of Wayne and the mapping companies or other entities assume no legal responsibility for the information contained herein. By accepting
this disclaimer you agree and understand the disclaimer.





SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

DISCUSSION: 

RECOMMENDATION: 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

OCTOBER 7, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

ITEM ___ _ _ 

Contract Award- 2019 Wastewater Collection System 
Rehabilitation & Storm Sewer Improvements Project 
Formal Bid No. 2019-007 

On Friday, September 27, 2019, three (3) sealed bids were 
received for the 2019 Wastewater Collection System 
Rehabilitation and Storm Sewer Improvements Project. 

The proposed work consists of rehabilitation of approximately 
3,800 linear feet of existing sanitary sewer mains by cured-in
place pipe linear and stormwater improvements at West Pine St. 
from George St. to Virginia St., East Pine St. from Center St. to John 
St., Elizabeth St., Marygold St., and Beech Street. 

Herring-Rivenbark, Inc. of Kinston, NC submitted the low bid for 
this project for a total cost of $886,590. The bids received for this 
project are tabulated as follows: 

Name of Bidder 

Herring-Rivenbark, Inc. 
Kinston, NC 

T. A. Loving Company 
Goldsboro, NC 

North American Pipeline Mgt., Inc. 
Greenville, SC 

Amount of Bid 

$ 886,590 

$ 995,775 

$1,227,925 

A $961,307 Gold Leaf Foundation Grant funds reimbursement for 
this project. We have reviewed the financing of this project with 
the Finance Director and determined that a budget ordinance is 
required to appropriate funds for this project. 

It is recommended that the City Council, by motion: 

1. Adopt the attached budget ordinance appropriating funds for the 
2019 Wastewater Collection System Rehabilitation & Storm Sewer 
Improvements Project. 

2. Adopt the attached resolution authorizing the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute a contract for $886,590 with Herring-

E



3. Rivenbark, Inc. for the 2019 Wastewater Collection System 
Rehabilitation and Storm Sewer Improvements Project. 

Date: I Oc.r I Cf 

Date:, ______ _ 

Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE GRANT 
PROJECT FUND FOR THE GOLDEN LEAF HURRICANE MATTHEW INFRASTRUCTURE 

RECOVERY PROJECT 2019-004 (S1105) 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns and maintains infrastructure for the 
treatment of wastewater to provide sanitary sewer to its citizens and customers, and for 
the management of storm sewer infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, the City applied for a grant from the Golden Leaf Foundation; and 

WHEREAS, on August 8, 2018, the Golden Leaf Foundation awarded the City a grant 
for the Hurricane Matthew Infrastructure Recovery project (2019-004) to make needed 
improvements to sewer and stormwater infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate the expenditures for the construction costs 
associated with the Project; and 

WHEREAS, this will be funded with an appropriation of grant revenue from the 
Golden Leaf Foundation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro that 
the following Capital Project Ordinance is hereby adopted: 

Golden Leaf Hurricane Matthew Infrastructure Recove rv Project 2019-0004 (81105 
Current Budget 

Revenues: 

Golden Leaf Grant 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 

Construction - Sewer & Stonnwater Imprvmts. 

Total Expenditures 

$ 961,307.00 
$ 961,307.00 

$ 961,307.00 
$ 961,307.00 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the day of 
_____ 2019. 

Mayor 

Attested by: 

City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019 -

RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A 
CONTRACT FOR 2019 WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM REHABILITATION AND 

STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
FORMAL BID NO. 2019-007 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro has heretofore found it in the 
public interest to undertake a project for wastewater collection system rehabilitation and 
storm sewer improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the low bid for the 2019 Wastewater Collection System Rehabilitation and 
Storm Sewer Improvements Project was submitted by Herring-Rivenbark, Inc. of Kinston, 
N C in the amount of $886,5 90 and 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of Goldsboro to 
accept the low bid and award the contract to Herring-Rivenbark, Inc. in the amount of 
$886,590 for the 2019 Wastewater Collection System Rehabilitation and Storm Sewer 
Improvements Project; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 
Carolina, that: 

1. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute a contract 
with Herring-Rivenbark, Inc. in the amount of $886,590 for the 2019 Wastewater 
Collection System Rehabilitation and Storm Sewer Improvements Project; 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this day of 
------' 2019. 

Mayor 

Attested by: 

City Clerk 



Item _______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

OCTOBER 7, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Informal Bid No. 2018-006:  Essential Single-Family Rehabilitation Loan Pool 
– Disaster Recovery (ESFRLP-DR) Program

BACKGROUND: Pursuant to Section 143-129 of the General Statues of North Carolina, sealed 
bids were solicited for disaster recovery repair work on properties located at 
802 N. Virginia Street, Goldsboro, NC; 605 Forest Knolls Road, Goldsboro, 
NC; 2046 Piney Grove Church Road, LaGrange, NC; 1271 Tommy’s Road, 
Goldsboro, NC; 1007 S. Taylor Street, Goldsboro, NC. 

DISCUSSION: On Thursday, May 16, 2019, one (1) sealed bids were received for disaster 
recovery repair work on behalf of five (5) homeowners through the Essential 
Single-Family Rehabilitation Loan Pool -Disaster Recovery (ESFRLP-DR) 
Program.  The bid received for these properties is tabulated as follows: 

ESFRLP-DR PROJECT ADDRESSES COST EST. 
DUDLEY 

CONSTRUCTION 
AMOUNT ($) 

BIDDER 
AMOUNT ($) 

BIDDER 
AMOUNT ($) 

1. 802 N. Virginia St., Goldsboro $9,450 $9,600 

2. 605 Forest Knolls Rd., Goldsboro 30,700 49,400 → **(40,000) 

3. 2046 Piney Grove Church Rd., LaGrange 19,000 26,550 

4. 1271 Tommy’s Road, Goldsboro 32,100 56,500 → **(40,000) 

5. 1007 S. Taylor Street, Goldsboro 5,500 11,550 

$96,750 

Total Amount of Received Bid 5 → $153,600 

**Amount over ESFRLP-DR program cap of $40,000 per home (has required
adjusting the Scope of Work to fall within the program cap of $40,000)

**2 →<$25,900> 

Funded through ESFRLP-DR (based on program cap of $40,000 per home) 5 → $127,700 

Total amount for contract under the set-aside ESFRLP-DR funds of $150,000 5 → $127,700 

Per the City’s ESFRLP-DR Procurement and Disbursement Policies, bid 
packages may be bundled for multiple job sites, the bids for multiple job sites 
shall be considered separate and apart when awarded and shall be awarded to 
the lowest responsive and responsible bidder(s) for each job site. 

F



  

The bid for these properties have been reviewed by the Community Relations 
Department, checked for accuracy, and found to be in order.  The Department 
has consulted with North Carolina Housing Finance Agency (NCHFA) on the 
proposed scope of work for each of these properties.  The Department also 
informed all five (5) homeowners and the low bidder of its review and the 
City’s intent moving forward to ensure full acknowledgement and final 
consent of the proposed scope of work.  
 
Based on NCHFA’s policies for the ESFRLP-DR Program, the City has set 
aside $150,000 of funds that have been allocated within the ESFRLP-Disaster 
Recovery line item within Community Relations’ CDBG Budget.  NCHFA’s 
policies further state that the City will be reimbursed up to $150,000 for each 
reimbursement request submitted to NCHFA for which the City completes at 
least three (3) homes.   
 

RECOMMENDATION: By motion, accept and award as low bidders for disaster recovery repairs work 
under the ESFRL-DR program to Dudley Construction of Tarboro, NC in the 
amount of $127,700 for the following properties: 802 N. Virginia Street, 
Goldsboro, NC; 605 Forest Knolls Road, Goldsboro, NC; 2046 Piney Grove 
Church Road, LaGrange, NC; 1271 Tommy’s Road, Goldsboro, NC; 1007 S. 
Taylor Street, Goldsboro, NC. 

 
 
 
Date:              

Shycole Simpson-Carter 
Community Relations Director 

 
 
Date:              
       Timothy M. Salmon 

City Manager 
 
 
 
ssc 
 



Item ______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

OCTOBER 7, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to Execute a Memorandum 
of Understanding with the County of Wayne 

BACKGROUND: The City is the owner of approximately six acres adjoining the Maxwell 
Center. The City has marketed 2.5 acres for the development of a hotel to 
compliment events at the Maxwell Center, however, no plans exist for hotel 
construction. 

DISCUSSION: The County of Wayne has expressed interest in taking over the hotel marketing 
and relieving the City from responsibilities associated with the hotel project.  
The County wishes to be solely responsible for marketing the 2.5 acres for a 
future hotel development.  The County may only market the 2.5 acres for hotel 
development and may offer the property for sale at no cost to potential 
developers.  The City will maintain ownership during the County’s marketing 
efforts and upon entering into an agreement with a hotel developer, the city 
will convey the property to the County or developer.  The County will oversee 
hotel marketing for three years, if the County is unable to secure a developer 
after this three year period, the city shall resume marketing responsibilities.  
The City will begin the marketing of the remaining 3.5 acres for a restaurant 
and/or retail development.  The City will repay the County the $138,000 
indebtedness for the retaining pond out of the proceeds of the sale of the 
remaining 3.5 acres. A copy of the Memorandum of Understanding is attached. 

RECOMMENDATION: By motion, adopt the attached resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk  
to execute a Memorandum of Understanding with the County of Wayne as 
described above. 

Date: 
City Attorney  

Date: 
City Manager 

G



 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019- 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM 
 OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE COUNTY OF WAYNE 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Goldsboro is the owner of approximately six acres adjoining the Maxwell Center. 
The City has marketed 2.5 acres for the development of a hotel to compliment events at the Maxwell Center, 
however, no plans exist for hotel construction; and  
 
WHEREAS, The County of Wayne has expressed interest in taking over the hotel marketing and relieving the 
City from responsibilities associated with the hotel project; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Goldsboro and the County of Wayne would like to enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding regarding the County’s interest to market 2.5 acres for the development of a hotel to 
compliment the Maxwell Center for a limited period of time – i.e. three years; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City owes the County the $138,000 for construction of the retaining pond and the parties 
agree that such can be paid out of the proceeds of the sale of the remaining 3.5 acres. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that: 
 

1. The City Council of the City of Goldsboro authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a 
Memorandum of Understanding with the County of Wayne to market 2.5 acres of the City’s 6 acres 
for development of a hotel to compliment events at the Maxwell Center for a three year period. 

 
2. The City Council further authorizes the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the said Memorandum of 

Understanding wherein the City agrees to pay the indebtedness owed to the County for its share of the 
construction of the retaining pond at the Maxwell Center location when the City sells the remaining 
3.5 acres    

 
3. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the ____ day of ___________ 2019. 

 
 
 
 ____________________________ 
 Mayor 
 
Attested by: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 

 



 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  
 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
COUNTY OF WAYNE  

 
THIS agreement made and entered into as of the _____ day of October, 2019 by COUNTY 

OF WAYNE (“County”), a body politic and corporate organized under the laws of the State of 
North Carolina and CITY OF GOLDSBORO (“City”), a North Carolina Municipal corporation in 
the County of Wayne, State of North Carolina.   

 
 

WITNESSETH 
 

WHEREAS, the County owns and operates the Maxwell Regional Agricultural and 
Convention Center (“Maxwell Center”) in Goldsboro, North Carolina;  

 
WHEREAS, the City is the owner of approximately six acres adjoining the Maxwell Center 

in Goldsboro, North Carolina as detailed in the attached Exhibit A;  
 
WHEREAS, the City marketed 2.5 acres for the development of a hotel to compliment 

events at the Maxwell Center, however, to date no plans exist for hotel construction; 
 
WHEREAS, in late 2017 the County constructed a retention pond to serve the Maxwell 

Center and to support further development on the six acres owned by the City;  
 
WHEREAS, the City is currently indebted to the County in the amount of $138,000 which 

represents the City’s portion of construction costs associated with said retention pond;  
 
WHEREAS, the parties recognize that the Maxwell Center would benefit from the 

existence of an adjacent hotel;  
 
WHEREAS, the County wishes to takeover hotel marketing and relieve the City from 

responsibilities associated with the hotel project; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein the parties 

hereto agree as follow:  
 
1. The County will be solely responsible for marketing the 2.5 acres for future hotel 

development as depicted in the attached Exhibit A which is incorporated herein by 
reference.  
 

2. The County may only market the 2.5 acres for hotel development and may offer the 
property for sale at no cost to potential developers. 

 
 



3. The City will maintain ownership of the aforementioned acreage during the County’s 
marketing efforts.  Upon the County entering into an agreement with a hotel developer, 
the City will convey the property to the County or the developer as the parties see fit; 

 
4. The County will oversee hotel marketing for three years from the date of execution of 

this Agreement.  If the County is unable to secure a developer after this three year 
period, the City shall resume marketing responsibilities of the 2.5 acres.   
 

5. The City will begin the marketing of the remaining 3.5 acres as depicted in Exhibit A 
for restaurant and/or retail development.   

 
6. The City will repay County the $138,000 indebtedness for the retaining pond out of the 

proceeds of the sale of the remaining 3.5 acres.   
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year 

first above written.   
 

 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

 
 
      By:        
            Chuck Allen, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
 
     
Melissa Capps 
City Clerk 
 
 
      WAYNE COUNTY  
 
 
      By:         

A. Joe Gurley, III; Chairman, Wayne County 
Board of Commissioners  
 

ATTEST:  
 
     
Carol Bowden 
Clerk, Wayne County Board of Commissioners 
 







H















I











J













K

















L













M



















N












	Agenda 10-7-19
	ws Item B  NC Freedom Festival Presentation
	Item A  Minutes 08 05 19
	Item B  2019-10-07 Fund 22 CDBG-NCDOC Keller Way Grant
	Agenda Memo - CDBG SR-NCDOC Keller Way Grant
	ORDINANCE 22 CDBG-NCDOC Keller Way 2019-10-07
	NCDOC 2019-133-3215-2545_Award_Letter
	Agreement NCDOC Infrastructure Adair Place $350K 2019-09-10
	Rural Housing Recovery Infrastructure Grant Application - Adair Place Apartment Project

	Item C  Resolution - Payment of Rural Housing Recovery Infrastructure Grant (000...
	Item D  2019-10-07 Property Swap Wayne Co
	Agenda Item Disposal of Real Property 306 Va 702 Simmons (REV)
	Resolution Authorizing Swap 306 Va 702 Simmons (REV)
	204 N Virginia St GIS
	Tax Card for 204 N Virginia St and 306 N Leslie St
	306 N. Leslie St. GIS
	702 Simmons St. GIS
	Tax Card for 702 Simmons Street

	Item E  2019 WW Collection System Rehab Project
	Item F Informal Bid No. 2018-006 (ESFRLP-DR) Program
	Item G-1 Memo MOU County
	Item G-2 MRACC Hotel MOU
	Item G-3 Maxwell MOU - scanned
	Item H  CU-8-19 Agenda Memo TC
	Item I  CU-9-19 Agenda Memo TC
	Item J  CU-10-19 Agenda Memo TC
	Item K  CU-11-19 Agenda Memo TC
	Item L  Z-16-19 Magnolia Grove R-16- O&I-1 Agenda Memo TC
	Item M  Z-17-19 KG Plaza 303 Lots Agenda Memo TC
	Item N  Z-18-19 Magnolia Grove from R-16- R-6CD Agenda Memo TC



